GSA-FORMS Electronic Forms System
Solicitation Number : GS00V06PDC0001
Additional Questions and Answers October 24, 2205

1. This question has been asked before, but we can still use some more clarification.  In what format does the Data captured by FormNet, PDF and FormFlow forms appear in?  We are asking about just the data and not the form.  For example, is the data and form saved together? Is the data saved in Access, dBase or ODBC compliant database?  Is the data saved as XML in a flat file?  What possibilities could there be?

Answer:  If this question is relative to the conversion of existing form data, the answer is this.  The issue is not converting a database or consolidated file that we already have.  The issue is converting data populated in a form from the old format to the new.  Perhaps these examples will help.

Government staff frequently performs repetitive processes, and store forms on their PCs that are fully populated.  When a new action requires it, they take the previous form, modify one or two data field responses and complete the next task.  

A simple example is, a procurement officer at an agency may be managing 50 acquisitions at a time.  For each acquisition they issue a Standard Form 30 for each action such as the RFP issuance, each amendment answering questions, each modification of the RFP and then the award.  Then during the life of the contract, all contract modifications, application of addition funds, extensions and exercising of options all require a SF30. Obviously the procurement officer does not want to start typing from scratch a new SF30 each time a new action occurs.  So they keep the last action from that contract with all the fields populated, make a copy and type over it to make the new action.  During a conversion to a new form tool, the Government does not want to force all the procurement officers to re-key all of their active RFPs and contracts, and all of their history into the new tool.  The vendor’s conversion of data offering will perform that function when requested.

Another example is a Human Resources (HR) department library of completed performance evaluations.  If we did nothing; some HR specialist may not be able to gain access to performance evaluations from the past because they are stored in individual files for the proprietary form for which that HR specialist does not have a client.  Some offices with these libraries have option to convert the entire library to the new form client so all authorized HR specialist can read the files using the new tool.

The contractor is to provide a service or tool that will provide that conversion when requested.  There are several ways this could be performed, but the Government is intentionally not specific on how that conversion is to occur.  The vendors shall propose how to provide that capability as an option to the Government along with optional unit-like pricing for the indefinite quantity of conversion that is requested and occurs.
2. Please clarify whether vendor response to RFP should be provided via email, CD or both?

Answer:  And electronic file with vendor response by email should be received by the date and time indicated on the RFQ.  Under separate cover, the additional set of CDs will be supplied to the Contracting Officer but the date sensitivity applies only to the email response with an electronic copy of the proposal.

3. Would GSA provide a copy of FormNet Designer software for the conversion purposes?  Field information such as name, size, accessibility tag, formatting, etc. can only be retrieved using the FormNet Designer software.  If not, would Intercon agree to sell single copies of its form designer for the conversion purposes?

Answer:  GSA will review its ability to provide access to our FormNet designer after reviewing the terms of our license and discussions with the vendor.  Offerors should submit their proposals with the assumption that the FormNet designer will not be available to them.
4. For form conversion purposes, does FormNet support export of its form template to a non-proprietary format such as XML?  If so, would Intercon be willing to provide the schema or format for the exported data?

Answer:  FormNet does support XML and the Government inserted the XML tags in the current forms that have them and would share the XML tags used.  Keep in mind not all forms have XML tags. 
5. Other than combing through the entries on the www.gsa.gov/forms web site is there another way to get a copy of all the forms published on this web site?  Can you provide us with a listing of all the forms that are available on this site and what format they are available in?

Answer:  A forms inventory will be supplied to the selected vendor.
6. Are all forms available on the www.gsa.gov/forms unlocked so they can be opened in their perspective designer software?  If not, for conversion purposes can you provide unlock copies of these forms?

Answer:  Yes, GSA will provide unlocked copies of files to the degree that we have the ability to do so.
7. Are sub-contractors required to submit their financial documents?

Answer:  No, sub-contractors are not required to submit financial documents to the Government.  The primary vendor is required to demonstrate financial viability to sustain the contract over the life-cycle in an appropriate manner.  
8. It is mentioned that this RFP is set aside for small businesses.  Does this mean that a small business Reseller or Partner of a non-small-business Electronic Forms vendor can also submit a proposal for this RFP?

Answer:  This RFP is a set aside for small businesses, therefore, proposals from small businesses that are the prime offerors on the proposal only will be accepted.  The prime may have any number of sub-contractors of any size that they choose.  
9. There are a little over 350 forms listed on the www.gsa.gov/forms web site.  Could you please point us in the direction of the remaining 350+ forms?
Answer:  Forms included in this RFP are GSA Forms, Standard, and Optional forms and other, all of which should be at the cited Web site.  When viewing the catalog, there are tabs across the top.  Select “All Forms” to view all forms.  Otherwise you are viewing a sub-set.

10.   The SOW references have a "processing" function; do you want the pricing related to processing the forms? 

Answer:  Yes.  Offerors should include in their price proposal prices for all of the functionality that is included in the SOW, including optional items and services offerings if applicable.  

As answered in another question earlier, processing forms refers to electronically accepting forms filled in by users, providing all of the functions in the SOW and providing the form and / or data to the destination system in the format requested, and maintaining logs and controls.
11.  The RFP references a 90-day time limitation for conversion of existing library of form. Is this 90 calendar days or 90 working days?
Answer:  It is the Government’s desire, not a requirement, to convert forms in 90 calendar days.  Vendors shall provide proposals with the conversion period.
12. Could you please provide more explanation on the following section [sic] Item 5:  Section 508 Compliance and Validation?  We do not quite understand what the deliverable is.
ANSWER:  The reference provided is in the RFP.  In the SOW at 3.6 is an explanation of the Section 508 compliance and validation (of other issues) services being sought.  The deliverable is a brief report (or checklist) back to the requestor, documenting what is and is not working right for the form developed by the Government,  after having an expert check the for the issues of Section 508 compliance and usability mapping, tagging, as well as digital signature capability and scripting forms.  Vendors may price each of those issues areas separately.   The contractor may also offer to remediate the form for a separate charge.  
The offeror shall provide a price for completing these processes, - a price per page, or per form or an hourly rate is acceptable but less desirable.  If an hourly rate is provided, the contract must provide an estimate of time required to complete an average form in our catalog. 
Note that this service is for Government developed forms.  For contractor developed forms, the contractor shall provide the same level of assurance that forms all operate properly.

13. Section 3.4.8 references proposing workflow features as a separate option. What types of workflow are being requested? Form creation workflow, form processing workflow or both? Do all forms follow the same workflow or does each form require a different workflow? Can forms be grouped into types and workflows assigned to each type? If so, who would be managing the workflow setup and maintenance as new forms are added to the system? 
Answer:  The purpose of requesting workflow as a non-mandatory requirement and option to the Government is to allow offerors to propose and price the workflow modules they have, and the Government to acquire and use it at our option in indefinite quantities.  The workflow engines are used after users have submitted forms with data.  The Government can use the workflow engine to route the form from function to function to sequentially (or parallel) complete the Government portion or the process by reviewing and approving parts of, or all of the form data.  There could be many workflow routes.  Workflow routings may be specific to a particular form.  One form type could have multiple work flow routings – depending on variables found in the data content.  For example, Form A allows request for large dollar items, which may route to 8 sequential stops, or small dollar items request, which may route to 4 stops of which 2 are parallel.

14. Section 3.20.1 states that the SDLC and C&A guidelines for server hardening are "available from the Contracting Officer upon request after signing a non-disclosure statement." We would like to request this information and are willing to sign a non-disclosure agreement. How do we proceed?
Answer:  It has been determined after legal review the SDLC and C&A for server hardening will only be available to the awardee after signing a non-disclosure statement.
15.  Is the form definition of the 700+ FormNet forms in a structured open format that would allow a contractor to automatically convert them for use in another non-proprietary application?
Answer:  No.  The formats are not 100% of any format, they are mixed.  A large portion is in FormNet format.  There is always the underlying PDF image files that may be used as the source for forms development in the winning product.  
16.  If a new software solution other than FormNet, FormFlow or PDF is selected, is it GSA's intent to abandon use and hosting of all FormNet, FormFlow and PDF formats? If not, why not? If so, why?
Answer:  Our strategy is to start hosting in the new format and that be our primary format for forms processing and the only format that we fully support.   We have not decided how long to maintain hosting in our older formats.  Our requests for data conversion and several other issues will determine our decision.  
17. We have received Amendments 1, 2, and 4. Please provide amendment #3.
Answer:  All RFQ related materials included amendments are posted at www.FBO.gov for all offerors to review.  Input the solicitation number into the search box for fastest access.
18. This bid scope is large and the B&P efforts are expensive for small businesses, please confirm this GSA requirement is fully funded for forms conversion of all 718 forms, software licenses, and professional services?
Answer:  GSA has a consistent funding for this kind of activity for the past 8 years and it will continue into the future. Our estimates and budgets are based on similar procurement efforts.
19. Please reference the SOW, 2.3 and 3.3.13, please identify the forms that require wizard forms, as wizard forms are more labor intensive to develop. This information is helpful in assessing the level of effort.
Answer:  None of our current forms have a wizard capability that is mandatory; therefore, it is not part of the conversion requirement.  Wizard fill in is a feature that we require in the future.  On the form development service requirements, vendors may price adding wizard capability to a form separately so that development may occur with or without wizard capability and priced accordingly.

20. Under the SOW, 1.1 Identification, paragraph 3, it states that "the contractor shall ensure that this project is consistent with the goals and direction of the Business Gateway forms catalog”. What is intended relationship between the Business Gateway and the GSA eForms System?
Answer:  All public forms are listed in the Business Gateway forms catalog at www.forms.gov.  Entering the forms into the Governmentwide catalog is an agency responsibility.  The only technical requirement here is that each form be able to be addresses with a unique URL location for direct linking.  That is the arrangement now.  GSA forms are maintained on the GSA web-site.  The Business Gateway catalog includes a number of the forms and the link brings the customer to the GSA site.
21. Who is Nathan Zuckerberg (noted under the properties tab in the RFP and SOW Documents)?
Answer:  The author of the SOW, a senior analyst at GSA and the GSA Contracting Officer Technical Representative for this effort.
22. Will cost proposal evaluations be based on 5-year total cost of ownership? Please identify all mandatory and desirable cost elements that are required.
Answer:  Yes.  See Statement of Work and submit your cost proposal accordingly.
23. Please provide the 3 Forms with the range requirements specified on page 10, paragraph 3, of the RFP to the potential vendors?
Answer:  The two forms selected are SF278 and SF71 and there is be no third form.
24. In order to accurately assess the level of effort will GSA provide the "mandatory field indicators", "field range check", and "information pop-ups for each form the RFP refers to on page 8, paragraph 10? If the answer is yes, when can the contract expect to receive the above information? If the answer is no, why not?
Answer:  The contractor should expect a minimum of basic field indicators in the conversion such as number fields must be numbers and zip codes must be numbers. 

25. Please provide weights to the evaluation criteria? What are the weightings for each of the three factors listed on page 12 of the RFP?
Answer:  Factor 1 (Technical Approach) is of greater importance than Factors 2 (Organizational Experience and Past Performance) or 3 (Key Personnel) which are of equal importance.  The weights are provided to the unsuccessful offerors who request a debriefing.
26. Since Mac and Linux are government standard with growing demand among users, has GSA determined there are no Mac and Linux users that need access to the 508 Accessible forms posted by GSA? We recommend mandatory verses desirable is in the best interest of government and the customers it serves.
Answer:  GSA has determined that our approach of listing those operating systems as desirable for the client (if any) OS is the best balance between our needs, market availability and competition on this procurement.  Offerings will be considered during the evaluation.
27. Accessibility is a key theme to this requirement. It is recommended GSA request each vendor to provide the VPAT for the client being proposed by each offeror.
Answer:  Noted.  Vendors should provide a VPAT for their client software.  The Government is also recognizes that it is the combination of the client and the form program together that achieves accessibility.
28. Please clarify how GSA is evaluating past performance of the product as it relates to corporate and financial stability? Please clarify.
Answer:  Past performance is an evaluation factor and relates to the performance of the firm on previous contracts, not limited to previous GSA contracts.
29. How long did it take GSA/Intercon to develop all of the current 718 accessible forms listed on the website in the Intercon format?
Answer:  GSA developed the Accessible FormNet forms with one person over a long period of time interspersed with other work.  We do not have any performance metrics for the effort.
30. It is evident that GSA made consideration for standards like XML and ODBC, etc. Is there any concern regarding downstream archiving requirements for the agencies GSA supports?
Answer:  GSA expects agencies to meet us with standardized interfaces, or for agencies to be responsible for engineering a solution.
31. Please reference the previous (10-13-2005) question 21d that talks to conversion cost to GSA by non-Intercon proposals. Although GSA indicates the solicitation is not biased towards any specific vendor, please describe how this will be factored in evaluation. As an example, lets assume 3 offers are equal across all three factors (incumbent is in final three) and price becomes the consideration, will GSA elaborate on how conversion costs of $0 for the incumbent will be assessed against offers that have costs for conversion of Intercon forms?
Answer:  It may be true that some vendors may have lower conversion efforts and costs.  Others may have lower products costs and yet others may have feature rich software.  The evaluation factors reflect the costs, benefits and impact to the Government of using one solution over another.  The determining factors of this effort are the strength of the proposals in their entirety to give the government the best value - costs, technical solution and all factors considered.
32. Please reference the RFP, General Proposal Format. If the proposal is delivered via email, is the CD submission required?
Answer:  Proposals must be received in electronic form prior to the closing date and time via email.  Supporting CDs are required but may be delivered within 3 days after the proposal due date.
33. Please reference the RFP, Company Information. Our company is a public company and will be providing the required financial information. The 3 years of financial information will be in excess of 20 pages including all footnotes, etc. Please exempt the Company Information requirement from the 50-page proposal limit i.e. as an attachment to the technical proposal.
Answer:  The 50 page limit does not include the financial statements, which can be additional pages.
34. Please reference the SOW, 3.24 Hosting. Please provide the GSA Web hosting server environment including the server manufacture, number of CPUs and speed, operating system, Web server i.e. IIS or Apache, application server i.e. Moss, WebLogic, and any other pertinent information to ensure proper sizing.
Answer:  We currently only have hosting for the GSA catalog and do not have a hosting environment for forms processing.  The offeror’s proposal shall suggest the technology as part of their proposal.  If multiple platforms can be can be used, please tell us so.
35. Please reference the RFP, Operational Demonstration. What format will the 3 forms be provided - PDF, FormNet or FormFlow?
Answer:  The proposed forms for Operational Presentation will be available in formats on the GSA Forms site.
36. Please reference the SOW 3.22 Conversion of existing forms and migration Requirements.
a. Can the vendor convert from the FormFlow Forms?
b. Can the vendor convert from the FormNet Forms? 
c. Can the vendor convert from the PDF Forms?
d. Can the vendor convert from a combination of all formats?
Answer:  The vendor can convert from any format they choose that we have available.  Forms conversion capability should be presented as part of an offeror’s proposal.

37. Please reference the SOW 15.0 Other. Please provide a URL that is accessible from the Internet. The URL provided is an Intranet address.
Answer:  Copy and paste the following URL into a Web browser:

http://www.gsa.gov/Portal/gsa/ep/formslibrary.do?pageTypeId=8199&channelPage=/ep/channel/gsaOverview.jsp&channelId=-13253
38. Since the contract cannot start until all 718 converted forms are accepted by GSA, can we get assurance that GSA staff will perform acceptance testing in a reasonable time, such as with ten days of receipt of each form?
Answer:  Yes.  The Government shall perform acceptance testing on forms converted in a reasonable time. (Federal holidays excluded.)
